THESE MINUTES REMAIN DRAFT UNTIL FORMALLY APPROVED AT THE 9 JUNE 2014 LOCAL COMMITTEE MEETING

Minutes of the meeting of the REIGATE AND BANSTEAD LOCAL COMMITTEE

held at 2.00 pm on 3 March 2014 at Reigate Town Hall, Castlefield Road, Reigate, Surrey RH2 0SH.

Surrey County Council Members:

- * Mrs Dorothy Ross-Tomlin (Chairman)
- * Mrs Kay Hammond (Vice-Chairman)
- Mrs Natalie Bramhall
- * Mr Jonathan Essex
- * Mr Bob Gardner
- * Mr Michael Gosling
- Dr Zully Grant-Duff
- * Mr Ken Gulati
- * Mr Nick Harrison
- * Ms Barbara Thomson

Borough / District Members:

Cllr Victor Broad

- * Cllr Adam De Save
- * Cllr Julian Ellacott
- * Cllr Ms Sarah Finch
- * Cllr Norman Harris
- * Cllr Roger Newstead
- * Cllr Graham Norman
- * Cllr David Powell
- * Cllr John Stephenson
- * Cllr Mrs Rachel Turner

1/14 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (AGENDA ITEM ONLY) [Item 1]

Apologies for absence were received from Cllr Victor Broad. Apologies for lateness were received from Mrs Kay Hammond.

2/14 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (AGENDA ITEM ONLY) [Item 2]

The following correction was made to the minutes:

69/13 - second paragraph, seventh line: replace 'he' with 'she'.

Subject to the above amendment, the minutes were agreed as a true and accurate record of the meeting.

[Cllr Newstead noted that he had not received a response to his supplementary question from the previous meeting. The Community

^{*} In attendance

Partnership and Committee Officer agreed to follow this up and a response from the Property Team has now been received as follows: "The answer to the question is that we are not seeking a temporary alternative site. A review of the space availability will be conducted during the period in which the maintenance works are being undertaken and will take account of a structural engineers assessment of any change of use required in the various rooms, in the light of recent events and new permitted safe maximum loadings."]

3/14 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (AGENDA ITEM ONLY) [Item 3]

None received.

4/14 PETITIONS (AGENDA ITEM ONLY) [Item 4]

The Committee received a petition signed by 220 residents, agreeing with the statement: "When exiting this forecourt I find my view of oncoming traffic obscured by parked cars."

The Committee **NOTED** the response of the Parking Strategy and Implementation Team Manager.

5/14 FORMAL PUBLIC QUESTIONS (AGENDA ITEM ONLY) [Item 5]

None received.

6/14 FORMAL MEMBER QUESTIONS (AGENDA ITEM ONLY) [Item 6]

None received.

7/14 ALLEGED PUBLIC FOOTPATH BETWEEN BELL STREET AND PARK LANE ACROSS PRIORY PARK AND THROUGH TO HIGH STREET, REIGATE [NON-EXECUTIVE FUNCTION - FOR DECISION] [Item 7]

Declarations of Interest: None

Officers attending: Daniel Williams, Countryside Access Officer and Nancy El-Shatoury, Principal Lawyer

Petitions, Public Questions, Statements:

In accordance with Standing Order 67, three objectors to the application spoke (Ms Helen Boddy; Mr Oliver Moses and Mr Matt Burgess). Their statements are attached to the minutes as **Appendix A.** The applicant, Mr Simon Elson, spoke in response to the objectors, stating that he had made the application in a private, individual capacity, and that the 57 claim forms received demonstrated that the route had been in use for at least 20 years.

Member Discussion – key points:

 The local Member for Reigate expressed the view that the evidence did not stand up, and that there were a myriad of alternative routes that members of the public could take that did not involve walking through the grounds of Reigate Priory School.

- Concerns were raised regarding making a right of way through school grounds and the potential risk that this would cause.
- Members asked what the difference between "by right" and "as of right" meant. The Countryside Access Officer explained that users could be considered to be using the park "by right" for recreational use which meant that permission was in place. He informed Members that counsel's advice had been that the public had been using the route as a highway rather than for recreational use so this permission might be deemed not to apply and therefore a public right might be acquired as a result of use "as of right" (i.e. without force, secrecy or permission).
- Other Members felt that since the route had operated as a right of way for more than 20 years, that it should be approved. They accepted the arguments of the objectors, but felt that it was necessary to follow the legal and officer advice given.
- Members wished to know what the consequences would be if they refused the application. The officer explained that the applicant had the right of appeal to the Secretary of State, and that it was likely that the appeal would be granted. If Members were minded to approve the application, a legal order would be made and advertised. Any objections would be referred to the Secretary of State and a public inquiry would be held. It was emphasised that the same legal rules would apply in this event, and the planning inspector would not be able to take into account safeguarding concerns. If the right of way was approved, the school would have the right to apply for a diversion or extinguishment. The Principal Lawyer confirmed that this could be applied for on safeguarding grounds if there was a threat of danger or harassment.
- Members wished to know if the route could be time-limited to nonschool hours. The officer explained that this was not possible as rights of way must be open 24 hours, 7 days a week in perpetuity. Gating orders were possible but there were none currently in Surrey. It was noted that Map Modification Orders involving school grounds had been made in the past.

Resolution:

The Committee AGREED that:

- (i) Public footpath rights are recognised over A-B-C and B-F-D on simplified plan 3/1/37/H64A (Annex B2 to the report submitted) and that the application for a Map Modification Order under sections 53 and 57 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 to modify the Definitive Map and Statement by the addition of these footpaths is approved. The routes will be known as public footpaths no.632 and 633 (Reigate).
- (ii) None of the other routes indicated on plan 3/1/37/H64 should be added to the Definitive Map and Statement.

(iii) A legal order should be made and advertised to implement these changes. If objections are maintained to such an order, it will be submitted to the Secretary of State for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs for confirmation.

8/14 REIGATE AND BANSTEAD BOROUGH ON STREET PARKING REVIEW 2014 [EXECUTIVE FUNCTION - FOR DECISION] [Item 8]

Declarations of Interest: None

Officers attending: David Curl, Parking Strategy and Implementation Team Manager and Adrian Harris, Engineer

Petitions, Public Questions, Statements:

Cllr Jim Blackmore, Chairman of Salfords and Sidlow Parish Council raised concerns regarding parking around Salfords Station, particularly where motorists were parking on verges. Cllr Blackmore agreed to discuss this with the local Member for Horley West, Salfords and Sidlow outside the meeting.

Member Discussion – key points:

- The local Member for Nork and Tattenhams requested small changes to the proposals for Nork Way and St Leonard's Road, which he would discuss with officers outside the meeting.
- The local Member for Tadworth and Walton raised concerns regarding enforcement in Heathcote. The Parking Team Manager noted that Surrey County Council works closely with Reigate and Banstead Borough Council's Enforcement Team, and that this location had been flagged previously. He agreed to raise it again and ensure that enforcement took place.
- The local Member for Reigate raised Beverley Heights, Alma Road, Brokes Road and Brokes Crescent as requiring attention and would discuss this with officers.
- The local Member for Redhill West and Meadvale raised concerns that double yellow lines from the previous review had not yet been installed, and raised concerns regarding Daneshill where there was parking on both sides of the road. She thanked officers for their work in Brooklands Way and around Reigate Police Station. Officers noted that the contractor was working to complete double yellow lines from the previous review but this work had been affected by the recent bad weather. He would look into the issues at Daneshill.
- The local Member for Redhill East thanked officers for their work with the Redhill Parking Task Group. He welcomed the residents' parking scheme proposed for Lynwood Road and the future plans for the Redstone Hill and Whitepost Hill areas. He asked whether some of the roads on the "unprogressed" list could be revisited next year, and asked whether the area around the new school at Battlebridge Lane could also be taken into consideration.

- The local Member for Merstham and Banstead South noted that he wished to discuss Grange Close, Josephine Avenue and Albert Road (Merstham) outside the meeting.
- The Chairman thanked the officers for their report.

Resolution:

The Committee AGREED:

- (i) The proposals in Annexes A to L to the report submitted.
- (ii) That if necessary, adjustments can be made to the proposals agreed at the meeting by the Parking Team Manager in consultation with the Chairman, Vice-Chairman and local Member prior to statutory consultation.
- (iii) That the intention of the County Council to make Traffic Regulation Orders under the relevant parts of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 to impose the waiting and on street parking restrictions in Reigate and Banstead as shown in the Annexes (and as subsequently modified by (ii)) is advertised and that if no objections are maintained, the Order is made.
- (iv) That if there are unresolved objections, they will be dealt with in accordance with the County Council's scheme of delegation by the Parking Strategy and Implementation Team Manager, in consultation with the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of this Committee and the appropriate County Councillor.
- (v) That if necessary, the Parking Team Manager will report the objections back to the Local Committee for resolution.
- (vi) To allocate funding of £15,000 in 2014/15 to implement the parking amendments.
- (vii)To consolidate (without material change) the Traffic Regulation Orders for the Quality Street/Old Mill Lane 'Restricted Parking Zone'.

9/14 OPERATION HORIZON FIVE YEAR CARRIAGEWAY MAINTENANCE PLAN [EXECUTIVE FUNCTION - FOR INFORMATION] [Item 9]

Declarations of Interest: None

Officers attending: Anita Guy, Acting Area Highways Manager

Petitions, Public Questions, Statements: None

Member Discussion – key points:

 Concerns were raised regarding the reprioritisation of works due to flooding; Members acknowledged that the current situation was unprecedented, but the condition of some roads in the borough was extremely poor; Linkfield Lane in Redhill was a specific example, and had been deferred again due to drainage issues. It was noted that only 23 roads had been completed in Reigate and Banstead which was far less than other areas, and it was felt that more time and effort was required.

- Concerns were raised regarding the list of roads in the Banstead, Woodmansterne and Chipstead division, as it was felt that other roads were more in need of work than those listed. The Chairman explained that the roads had been identified by the previous local Member, and the Acting Area Highways Manager added that they had been prioritised according to technical need; in some cases, the damage was beneath the road surface.
- Members asked if the priority of some roads could be revisited following the bad weather. The officer reported that a Recovery Programme was being drawn up which would include roads damaged by the winter weather.
- Discussion took place regarding the criteria for emergency works to address safety defects. The Acting Area Highways Manager assured Members that these issues would be addressed; however, there was a backlog of works and some temporary fixes had been necessary.
- It was noted that Waterlow Road, Reigate had been completed and therefore should not be on the list. Members wished to know if the funding could be reallocated. The officer agreed to take this back to the Operation Horizon team.
- A number of locations in Nork and Tattenhams were raised; the local Member agreed to email a list to the Acting Area Highways Manager.
- Concerns were raised regarding the poor quality of works complete in the last year. The officer was aware of the issues and reported that they would be addressed. The Chairman requested a future agenda item regarding standards of highways work.
- Issues in Shelvers Way, Cross Road, Tadworth Street and The Avenue, Tadworth were reported.
- It was noted that many cars had suffered tyre damage due to potholes in Gatton Bottom, Merstham. The officer reported that extra funding had been allocated for flood damage, and that these holes would be filled.

Resolution:

The Committee **NOTED**:

- (i) The success of the countywide 5-year programme in year one.
- (ii) The progress of Operation Horizon roads, Surface Treatment roads, and changes in year one in Reigate and Banstead in Annex 1 to the report submitted.

(iii) The proposed programme of Operation Horizon roads for Reigate and Banstead for year two (2014/15) and the remaining approved roads to be undertaken in years three to five (2015 to 2018) listed in Annex 1 to the report submitted.

10/14 ROAD SAFETY POLICY UDPATE [EXECUTIVE FUNCTION - FOR INFORMATION] [Item 10]

Declarations of Interest: None

Officers attending: Duncan Knox, Road Safety Team Manager and Rebecca Harrison, Sustainable Community Engagement Team Leader

Petitions, Public Questions, Statements: None

Member Discussion – key points:

- Members raised the issue of school expansion and the safety issues this would bring. They wished to know if funding for new safety measures was expected to come from the Local Committee's budget. The Road Safety Team Manager informed Members that there was no additional funding for safety measures available. However, the Schools Expansion Programme had set up a task group to look at incorporating such measures into the planning process. The Road Safety Outside Schools Policy would apply regardless of whether schools were expanding or not.
- Members wished to know if special speed limits (e.g. 20mph) could be restricted to school hours only. The Road Safety Team Manager explained that every site had to be considered on its own merits. In many cases, speed was not the biggest issue and parking and unsafe crossing were the main safety issues.
- Discussion took place regarding school crossing patrols. The Sustainable Community Engagement Team Leader explained that it was difficult to recruit crossing patrols, and that the County Council had funded advertisements in local papers. There were currently 15 to 20 vacancies across Surrey at schools with varying levels of risk. She noted that the County Council was also willing to train volunteer crossing patrols.
- Members felt that whilst there was a strong argument for a more robust speed limit policy, there was also an issue of police enforcement. The Road Safety Team Manager explained that signage alone would not necessarily change prevailing speeds, and that engineering measures were often required too.
- Concerns were raised that residents were not being listened to with regards to safety concerns. The officer explained that where requests were made, existing speeds and casualty figures would be investigated.
- Discussion took place regarding speeding outside schools. At the Royal Alexandra and Albert School there had already been a request

for a reduction to 20mph and the local Member would be speaking to officers about this outside the meeting. At other locations, for example, in Tadworth, it was noted that the number of parked cars meant speeding was impossible and a reduction in speed limit would not make a difference to safety. Members felt that there was a need to educate parents and ensure that they pay attention to where they park and cross the road. The officer noted these points and reported that the police would be involved in speed measurement at the Royal Alexandra and Albert School. He agreed that it was important to involve parents as the problems would only be solved with their cooperation.

Resolution:

That the Local Committee's comments as above on the draft policies be taken into account prior to the policies being submitted to Surrey County Council's Cabinet for approval.

11/14 TRAVEL SMART 2014-15 PROGRAMME AND CYCLING PROGRAMME [EXECUTIVE FUNCTION - FOR DECISION] [Item 11]

Declarations of Interest: None

Officers attending: None (Harris Vallianatos, Travel SMART Engagement Officer sent apologies).

Petitions, Public Questions, Statements: None

Member Discussion - key points:

• It was noted that the proposals had all been agreed in principle by the Local Sustainable Transport Fund Task Group.

Resolution:

The Committee AGREED:

- (i) The proposed 2014/15 Travel SMART programme for Redhill and Reigate.
- (ii) That the decision on minor amendments to the 2014/15 programme be delegated to the Chairman of the Local Committee and the Chairman of the Travel SMART Delivery Board in consultation with Members of the Reigate and Banstead Local Committee LSTF Task Group.
- (iii) The segregated pedestrian and cycle scheme for A23 London Road attached as Annex C to the report submitted.
- (iv) That the western footway of London Road, Redhill between Princess Way (Lombard Roundabout) and Colesmead Road be converted to segregated pedestrian and cycle use.
- (v) To note the new funding opportunity made available by the Department of Transport for additional revenue funding for 2015/16.

12/14 HIGHWAYS SCHEMES 2013-14 - END OF YEAR UPDATE REPORT [EXECUTIVE FUNCTION - FOR INFORMATION] [Item 12]

Declarations of Interest: None

Officers attending: Anita Guy, Acting Area Highways Manager

Petitions, Public Questions, Statements: None

Member Discussion – key points:

- Members wished to know if the Highways Localism initiative would be taking place in 2014/15. The Acting Area Highways Manager confirmed that it would be.
- Discussion took place regarding a suggestion that the scale of the Local Structural Repairs budget be reviewed in order for more short term repairs to take place. The officer reminded Members that the forward programme had already been agreed in December 2013, and any changes to the balance would need to be agreed by the Committee. The Chairman felt that this needed to be discussed outside the meeting with officers.
- Clarification was sought regarding the A23 Brighton Road junction improvements in Salfords, and whether the design would be carried out or if this was subject to developer contributions. The officer reported that this scheme was with the design team who were working on feasibility study and access arrangements for the new fire station. This also included access arrangements to the Days site and the back of Salfords Station.

Resolution:

The Committee **NOTED** the report.

13/14 LOCAL COMMITTEE AND MEMBERS ALLOCATION FUNDING - UPDATE [FOR INFORMATION] [Item 13]

Declarations of Interest: None

Officers attending: Sarah Quinn, Community Partnership and Committee Officer and Rowena Zelley, Local Support Assistant

Petitions, Public Questions, Statements: None

Member Discussion – key points:

- An updated spreadsheet was tabled and is attached to the minutes as Appendix B.
- Mrs Kay Hammond reported that she had allocated her remaining £575 to Riding for the Disabled.

	 Members thanked the Local Support Assistant for her hard work on this.
	Resolution:
	The Committee NOTED the report.
14/14	CABINET FORWARD PLAN [FOR INFORMATION] [Item 14]
	The Committee NOTED the report.
15/14	LOCAL COMMITTEE FORWARD PLAN [FOR INFORMATION] [Item 15]
	The Committee NOTED the report.
16/14	URGENT ITEM - C58/880 FLANCHFORD BRIDGE - FLOOD DAMAGE REPAIR INFORMATION [FOR INFORMATION ONLY] [Item 16]
	The Committee NOTED the report.
	Meeting ended at: 4.25 pm

Chairman